
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
5051 South 1900 West  ║  Roy, Utah 84067  ║  Telephone (801) 774-1000  ║  Fax (801) 774-1030 

Council Members 
• Jan Burrell 

• Joe Paul 
• Bryon Saxton 
• Diane Wilson 

• Ann Jackson 

Mayor  
• Robert Dandoy 
 
City Manager  
• Matt Andrews 

 
 ROY CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA  

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS-5051 S 1900 W ROY, UT 84067 
 

MAY 18, 2021 – 5:30 P.M. 
 

This meeting will be streamed live on the Roy City YouTube 
channel. https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC6zdmDzxdOSW6veb2XpzCNA 

 
A. Welcome & Roll Call 
B. Moment of Silence 
C. Pledge of Allegiance 
D. Consent Items 

(These items are considered by the City Council to be routine and will be enacted by a single motion. If discussion is 
desired on any particular consent item, that item may be removed from the consent agenda and considered separately) 

 
1. Approval of the April 6, 2021 Roy City Council Work Session Minutes, April 6, 2021 Roy City Council 

Meeting Minutes  
2. Municipal Wastewater Planning Program Annual Report for the year ending 2020 

 
E. Public Comments  

 
This is an opportunity to address the Council regarding concerns or ideas on any topic. To help allow everyone 
attending this meeting to voice their concerns or ideas, please consider limiting the amount of time you take. We 
welcome all input and recognize some topics make take a little more time than others. If you feel your message is 
complicated and requires a lot of time to explain, then feel free to email your thoughts to admin@royutah.org. Your 
information will be forwarded to all council members and a response will be provided. 
 
F. Presentation 

 
1. Fraud Risk Assessment  

 
G. Action Items 
 

1. Resolution 21-7- Amending admission fees beginning in the 2021 Season of the Roy City Aquatic Center 
 

H. City Manager & Council Report 
 
I. Adjournment 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing auxiliary communicative aids and 
services for these meetings should contact the Administration Department at (801) 774-1020 or by 
email: admin@royutah.org at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 
Pursuant to Section 52-4-7.8 (1)(e) and (3)(B)(ii) “Electronic Meetings” of the Open and Public Meetings 
Law, Any Councilmember may participate in the meeting via teleconference, and such electronic means will 
provide the public body the ability to communicate via the teleconference.  
 

Certificate of Posting 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC6zdmDzxdOSW6veb2XpzCNA
mailto:admin@royutah.org
mailto:admin@royutah.org


 
 

The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in a public 
place within the Roy City limits on this 14th day of May, 2021. A copy was also provided to the Standard Examiner and 
posted on the Roy City Website and Utah Public Notice Website on the 14th day of May, 2021. 

           
Morgan Langholf 

          City Recorder  
Visit the Roy City Web Site @ www.royutah.org 
Roy City Council Agenda Information – (801) 774-1020 
 
 
 

 

http://www.royutah.org/


ROY CITY 
Roy City Council Meeting Minutes  
April 6, 2021 – 5:30 p.m. 
Roy City Council  
Electronic Zoom Meeting 

 

            
 
Minutes of the Roy City Council Meeting held electronically via Zoom and YouTube on April 6, 
2021 at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Notice of the meeting was provided to the Utah Public Notice Website at least 24 hours in 
advance.  A copy of the agenda was posted. 
 
The following members were in attendance: 
 
Mayor Robert Dandoy City Manager, Matt Andrews 
Councilmember Paul  City Attorney, Andy Blackburn 
Councilmember Saxton  
Councilmember Wilson 
Councilmember Jackson 
Councilmember Burrell 
 
Also present were: Management Services Director, Camille Cook; Police Chief, Carl Merino; 
Parks and Recreation Director, Travis Flint; Public Works Director, Ross Oliver, Morgan 
Langholf, Brandon Edwards, Steve Parkinson, Randy Sant; 
 
A. Welcome & Roll Call 
 
Mayor Dandoy welcomed those in attendance and noted Councilmembers Jackson, Burrell, Paul, 
Saxton, and Wilson were present.     
 
B. Moment of Silence 
 
Councilmember Joe Paul invited the audience to observe a moment of silence. 
 
C. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Councilmember Joe Paul lead the audience in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Mayor Dandoy noted that Roy City had 87 active cases of COVID-19 and read the Mayor’s 
Determination to Hold Electronic Meetings. 
 
D. Consent Items 
 
(These items are considered by the City Council to be routine and will be enacted by a single 
motion.  If discussion is desired on any particular consent item, that item may be removed from 
the consent agenda and considered separately.) 
 

1. Approval of the January 19, 2021 Roy City Council Work Session Meeting 
Minutes, February 16, 2021 Roy City Council Meeting Minutes, March 2, 
2021 Roy City Council and Work Session Minutes 

2. Approval of a New Business Advisory Board Member  
 



City Council Minutes 
April 6, 2021 
Page 2 
Councilmember Wilson motioned to approve the Consent Items with the changes made. 
Councilmember Jackson seconded the motion.  All Councilmembers voted “aye.” The 
motion carried.  
 
E. Action Items 
 

1. Employee of the Month  
 
City Attorney, Andy Blackburn, said he would like to nominate Steve Parkinson to be the 
employee of the month and asked that he be recognized for everything he had accomplished.  
 
Councilmember Paul motioned to approve Steve Parkinson as Employee of the Month.  
Councilmember Jackson seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken.   All 
Councilmembers voted “aye.”  The motion carried. 
 

2. PUBLIC HEARING- FY 2021 Budget Opening 
 
Management Services Director, Camille Cook, presented this Resolution 21-9 Amending the FY 
2021 Budget by $1,726,195.  A 10% increase to sales tax revenue was proposed but they were 
unsure how the stimulus money affected their sales tax revenues.  The City received three grants.  
In the general fund they proposed to increase the parks budget by $14,000 for an additional 
fertilizer application to each of the parks, and $4,500 to purchase football helmets.  Fire equipment 
was moved to the General Fund so pieces could be purchased individually as needed rather than 
as sets.  $427,292 would be transferred to the capital projects fund, and $21,000 would be left over 
after planned expenditures to be allocated at a later date.  An additional ambulance was being 
proposed with the shifting of funds from fire budgets as well as a replacement ambulance for the 
current one.  Water and sewer utilities were requesting $260,831 for projects.  Solid waste utility 
fund was requesting $100,000 and Class C Roads was also requesting $100,000.  $60,000 was 
originally proposed for parks but $42,245 was suggested to be reallocated to use as a match for the 
dog park.  
 
Councilmember Jan motioned to open the Public Hearing. Councilmember Diane seconded 
the motion. All Councilmembers voted “aye.” The motion carried.  
 
City Recorder, Morgan Langholf, informed the Mayor that there were no requests for comments 
at this time.  
 
Councilmember Jan motioned to go out of Public Hearing. Councilmember Ann seconded 
the motion. All Councilmembers voted “aye.” The motion carried.  
 
Councilmember Wilson asked why they were doing both ambulances at the same time.  Camille 
Cook replied that one was due for replacement last July.  However, by doing them both at once 
they were hoping to get more competitive pricing.  Chief Golden stated that ambulances were front 
line for three years and then on reserve for another two or three years depending on how many 
miles they had.  They didn’t keep them for any longer than seven years. 
 
Councilmember Burrell motioned to approve Resolution 21-9.  Councilmember Jackson 
seconded the motion.  All Councilmembers voted “Aye.” The motion carried.  



City Council Minutes 
April 6, 2021 
Page 3 
 
F. Public Comments 
 
No requests were submitted to make public comment. 
 
G. Discussion Items 
 

1. Establishing an Ordinance/Resolution to restrict culinary irrigation water 
usage if necessary. 

 
Mayor Dandoy stated that they were in an extreme drought and asked if Council wanted to make 
an ordinance to implement water conservation tactics.  Councilmember Burrell asked if they would 
be obligated to enforce anything that they implemented and how they would do it.  Mayor Dandoy 
said they could make a non-binding resolution to be more suggestive or they could make it a 
resolution which would be more enforceable.  Enforcement would be expensive and make it really 
difficult to follow through on.  Mayor Dandoy said they wouldn’t do anything unless there was 
direction from the Governor or the districts.   
 

2. Holding a 5-Year Strategic Plan Off-Site meeting with Senior Leaders  
 
Mayor Dandoy said the purpose of this would be to allow the Council to give some direction to 
the City staff about what they would like to see done in Roy City over the next five years.  
Councilmembers, city managers, and department heads would all attend the meeting and define 
their priorities for the next five years to implement into the budget.  The meeting would be open 
to the public if they wanted to attend.  All agreed for the meeting to happen.   
 

3. Plans to bring City Council Meeting back to normal operations. 
 
Mayor Dandoy indicated that there were municipalities and counties that were back to normal and 
meeting in person.  Roy was being conservative because they wanted to be safe to everyone.  They 
would continue to wear masks and social distance until the problem was declared gone. 
 
H. Reports 

 
1. City Manager Report 

 
City Manager, Matt Andrews, reported on the Easter egg hunt and thanked the parks and recreation 
department.  Mayor Dandoy thanked waste management as well.  Mr. Andrews reported that they 
had received a grant for over the railroad tracks to finish the sidewalks on the north side of 4000 
South.  They were looking for football coaches and a budget had been requested by the BAB.  
 

2. Mayor and Council Report 
 
Mayor Dandoy reported that there were some drawings of the proposed cemetery and they were 
getting the ball rolling with the project. 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
April 6, 2021 
Page 4 

I. Adjournment 
 
Councilmember Wilson motioned to adjourn the City Council meeting at 6:24 p.m.   
Councilmember Saxton seconded the motion.   All Councilmembers voted “Aye.”   The 
motion carried. 
 
 

______________________________ 
Robert Dandoy 
Mayor  

 
 
 
Attest:  
 
 
__________________________________  
Morgan Langholf 
City Recorder 
 
 
 
dc:   



 
ROY CITY 
Roy City Council Work Session  
April 6, 2021 – 4:30 p.m. 
Roy City Council Chambers  
5051 South 1900 West 

 
 
 
 
Minutes of the Roy City Council Work Session held via ZOOM on April 6, 2021 at 4:30 p.m. 
 
Notice of the meeting was provided to the Utah Public Notice Website at least 24 hours in advance.  A 
copy of the agenda was posted. 

 
The following members were in attendance: 
 
Mayor Robert Dandoy City Manager, Matt Andrews 
Councilmember Jan Burrell  City Attorney, Andy Blackburn 
Councilmember Joe Paul City Planner, Steve Parkinson 
Councilmember Bryon Saxton  
Councilmember Diane Wilson 
Councilmember Ann Jackson  
 
Also present were: City Recorder, Morgan Langholf; Randy Sant. 
 
A. Welcome & Roll Call 
 
Mayor Dandoy welcomed those in attendance and noted Councilmembers Burrell, Paul, Saxton, Jackson, 
and Wilson were present.   
 
Mayor Dandoy read the electronic meeting statement related to COVID-19. 
 

B. Discussion 
 
1. Proposed Mixed Use for Frontrunner Station and Innovation Center Areas 

 
City Planner Steve Parkinson discussed this ordinance.  He showed a table of the various uses and explained 
the differences of each.  There was discussion on whether or not they were ready to proceed with discussions 
on the designated area of if it should be broken down further.  Affordable housing had to be a part of the 
discussion because of state requirements.  Affordable housing and State codes were discussed.  The City 
needed to have a plan for the area within a half mile radius of the train station and follow the guidelines of 
State Code 34.   
 
The different areas were discussed.  Splitting the north part of 4000 West was suggested because of the 
single-family homes that were there and because the topography was different.  Building heights were a 
concern and it was agreed that heights on the north side could be taller than the south side.  There were 
concerns about the homes to the west of the trail being bombarded with large buildings.  Building heights 
were discussed further and there was agreement about grading for equal rooftops.   
 
It was noted that UTA wanted to get 25 units of residency per acre.  The private property could be whatever 
the owners wanted it to be, but Council could set height restrictions.  Senate bill 217 allowed UTA to have 
up to 50 units per acre and the concern was that they would bring 50 units in.  However, the bill gave the 
City the choice to decide what they wanted it to be.   
 
Setbacks also needed to be considered because of the different setback requirements for public and private 
roads.  It was asked how many stories it would take to get 25 units of residency on the UTA property.  The 
answer was hard to determine because of roads but around three to four stories would probably be enough.  
Mayor Dandoy stated that mixed-use didn’t have to be vertical; it could be horizontal and there could be 



City Council Minutes 
April 6, 2021 
Page 2 
 
commercial, so there were other solutions.  There were commercial opportunities within the half mile radius 
of the train station because of how much residential around there and how many people that would walk to 
the trains for ridership.  This could be a selling point to UTA.   
 
There was discussion about setting commercial requirements; otherwise it would all become residential or 
if they wanted it all to be residential.  Mayor Dandoy said he wanted to have a work session for public 
input, and he would ask UTA to come in and let them know what they wanted to do with the property. 
 
Councilmember Diane asked how they would get people involved in a public meeting and setting up a task 
force of citizens.  Mayor Dandoy replied that they had a list of people in the area give their email addresses 
and so those that had given their addresses had received this information.  They had to wait and see what 
COVID requirements would be, but a town hall conversation would be good to have about this for feedback 
from the residents.  Mayor Dandoy suggested emailing the people that had given their email addresses and 
asking them how they wanted to present their opinions.            
 

C. Adjournment 
 
Councilmember Paul Motioned to Adjourn the City Council Work Session meeting at 5:27 p.m. 
Councilmember Burrell seconded the motion.  All Councilmembers voted “aye.”  The motion carried. 
 
 
 
 

________________________________  
Robert Dandoy 
Mayor  

 
 
 
Attest:  
 
 
__________________________________  
Morgan Langholf 
City Recorder 
 
 
 
dc:   

































































 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-10 
AMENDING ADMISSION FEES BEGINNING IN THE 2021 SEASON OF THE ROY 

CITY AQUATIC CENTER 
 

 
WHEREAS, as Roy City periodically reviews season fees of the Aquatic Center; and 
 
WHEREAS, Roy City, after review, has observed increased costs of operations, especially due 
to staffing issues and overtime pay; and  
 
WHEREAS, Roy City has determined that it is in the best interest to increase rates for the 
admission to the Aquatic Center beginning in the 2021 season; and  
 
WHEREAS, Roy City has also determined that an adjustment in rates should be made for Roy 
City residents; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that effective the ___ date of May, 2021 the admission 
rates be as follows: 
 
     

Resident 8 Years and Older: $6.00 
*Proof of residency required* 

Non-Resident 8 Years and Older: $7.00 
3-7 Years Old: $5.00* 

Seniors 65 & Older: $5.00 
3 Years and Younger:  Free** 

*Must be accompanied and within arm’s reach of an adult. 
**Ages 3 and younger must wear swim diapers and plastic pants as mandated by the Weber-

Morgan Health Department. 
 

Discount Passes: 
Resident 10 Punch Pass: $45 
*Proof of residency required* 

Non-Resident 10 Punch Pass: $55 
 
 
             
        _______________________________________ 
      Robert Dandoy 
      Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Morgan Langholf 
City Recorder 


	04-06-21 Roy City Council Meeting Minutes - FINAL.pdf
	A. UWelcome & Roll Call
	B. UMoment of Silence
	C. UPledge of Allegiance
	D. UConsent Items
	(These items are considered by the City Council to be routine and will be enacted by a single motion.  If discussion is desired on any particular consent item, that item may be removed from the consent agenda and considered separately.)
	Councilmember Wilson motioned to approve the Consent Items with the changes made. Councilmember Jackson seconded the motion.  All Councilmembers voted “aye.” The motion carried.
	E. UAction Items

	04-06-21 Roy City Council Work Session Minutes - FINAL.pdf
	A. Welcome & Roll Call


